
REPUBI,IC OP KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n hanc ing A ccountob ility

REPORT
,I AMENT
KEN YA
RARLIB OF

THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

NYATHUNA LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE ,2023

COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF KIAMBU

ON

%



lUltt

I\ryATHUNA LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL

(Kiambu Countl' G ovcrnment)

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEIViENTS

Prepared in accordance rvith the Accrual Basis of Accounting Method undcr the

International Public Sector Accounting Standards, (IPSAS)

a

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3()Th ruNE,2023



Table of C or.rte nts

1. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms

2. Key Entity Information and Management

3. The Board of ltrlanagement

4. Key Management Team...........

5. Chairman's Statement.. 
i

6. Report of The tr/edical Superintendent..............

7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives.

8. Corporate Governance Statement....

9. Management Discussion and Ana|ysis.............

10.EnvironmentalAndSustainabilityReporting

i 1 . Report of The Board of Management..................

12. Statement of Board of Manar,lement's Responsibilities ...............:......

73. Report of the lndependent A.uditor (Nyathuna.t:eve! 4 Hospita/s). ... ..........
14. Statement of Financial Performance foi The Year Ended 30 June 2023.............

15.StatementofFinancialPositionAsAt30June2023

16. Statemenl of Changes in N,-'t Asset'for The year Ended 30 June 2023....

17. Statemenl of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

18.Statement of Comparison.of Budget and Actual Amounts for Year Ended 30 Jun 2023
1 9. Notes to the Financial Siatements...................................i......

20. Appendices..................

......1t

.....iii

..... vi

..... ix

.... xii

... xiv '

.... xx

..xxiii

., xxv

xxviii

.. xxx

. xxxi

xxxiii

......1

..,...3

,.....5

......6

..,...8

......9

...53

Nyathuna Ieyel .l llospitu! (Kiambu County Government)
Annuol_ Relnrr urrrl Financial Stalenents -fot lhe Year Ended 30,t' Junc 202-l



Nyathuna L
Annual Rep

evel 4 Hospital (Kiambu Count.t'

ort and Financial Statet,renls f0r
Oovartrment)
T'he l'ear Ended 30tt' June 2023

1. Acronyms & Glossary of 'I'erms

CSR

OSHA

PFMA

MED SUP

HAO

HRIO

NSM

NHIF

NGO

USAID

NORAD

AGSP

AED

CHAK

CORAT-Africa

KHA

LVCT-Dhibiti

EGPAF

CWCMCH'

ANC & FP

NCD

MOPC

OPD

IPSAS

FY

SCMOH

CEO

Corporate Social Responsibility

Occupatronal Health & Safety Act

Public Financial Management Act

Medical Superintendent

Health A dministrative Officer

Health Records Information Offrcer

Nursing Services Manager

National Health lnsurance Fund

Non-Govemmental Organization /'

United States Agency for Intemational Development

Norwegian Agency for Developmdnt Cooperation

Ambassadors Girls' Scholarship Program

Academy for Educational Development

Christian Health Aqsociation of .Kenya

Christian Organizations Research Advisory Trust of Africa

Kenya Health Association

Liverpool Voluntary Counselling and Testing

E\Abeth Glaser Pediatric AIDS Foundation

.thild y.lfrr. Clinic Maternal Child Health

Antenatal Clinic & Family Planning

Noncommunicable Diseases

Medical Out-Patient Clinic

Out Patient Department

lntemational Public Sector Accountiag Standards

Financial Year

Sub County Medical Officer of Health

Chief Executive Officer

1l
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2. Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Ilackground information

Nyathuna Hospital is a level 4 hcspital establishcd un der qazette notice 6 supplement numler

3 dated 25th Jan 2017 and is domiciled in Kiambu ('ounty. The hospital is governed by a

Board of Management and Hospital Managemenl -feant

(b) I'rincipal Activities

The mandate of the hospitat is to promote and participate in provision of integrated and

high quality promotive, preventive, curative and rehabilitative health care services to all.

The vision - an efficient and high-qualiry health carc system that is accessible, equitable

and affordable

(c) Key Management

The hospital's management is under the following kcy organs:

o Kiambu County department of hgalth ,

r Nyathuna Hospital Board of Managemenl

o Med.cal off,rcer in charge - (Accounting Officer/ CEO)

r Hospital Management Team

(d)

No
. 
Designation

1 Medical Officer in Charge

Nursing services Manager

J Accountant Jedidah WambuiNjogu

4 Procurement Officer Eunice Muthoni Ndonga

5 Pharmacy in Charge James Kiarie Kiboi

Liaet Wanj iru Warui6 Nutritionist

'1 Laboratory in Charge Philip Githongo Kahunga

Fiduciary Managem,ent

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30h June

2023 atdwho had direct fiduciary responsibility were :

Name

Dr Mary Wambui Njoroge

2. Grace Wairimu Thiong'o

lll
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No. Nanre

8 Esther Wamuyu Baragu

9 Hospital Sanitation in'Charge Irranklin Mwangi Manjari

Designation

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

(f) Entity Headquarters 
I
!

P.O Box 160 Ngecha, KenYa

(e) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (254) 7 45521153'

E-mail

(h) Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank (Operations Account)

Kenya Commercial Bank (NHIF iollection account)

Family Bank (Mpesa Collection Paybill No. '1146451)

(D Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General 

t

Anniversary Towers, lnstitute WaY

P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

I 1575901 87

12634'l tt4s
0010000s3770

lv

Clinician in Charge

- Hospital Board

- Finance and General Pi:rposes Board Sub-Committee

- Hospital Management Committee

- ProcurementCommittee

- Medicine and Therapeutic Committee

- Comrption and Advisory Committee

sdnyathuna@email.gom
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0) Principal Legal Arlviscr

(k) County Attorn cv

P.O. Box.2344-00900

Kiambu, Kenya

The Attorney G': ncral
State Larv Officc
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 12

City Square 00200
Nairobi. Kenya



Nyathuna Level 4 Ilospiral (Kianbu County Governmenl)
Annual Rep ort and Finunt'iol Statements for The Year Ended 30't' June 2023

3. The Board of N'lanagement

Position: Hospital Board Chairperson

Date of Birth- 30th January 1948

Kev Oualifications and Work Experience

Education: CCE ordinary level

1970-1980- Kenya Post and Telecommunication

accounts clerk

I 9 87-provincial administration assistant chief

1995- chief grade2 ,..

1998-chief grade,I

2000- retired

2OO9-2t911- Nyathuna health cenhe commiftee

member then chairman from 2012-2014

1. Charles Mburu Wainaina

Education 1981, O-Level 1985

work- self-employed local farmer and driver

Position: Hospital Board Member

Date of Birth- 24th March 1967

Kev Oualihcations and Work Denence

2. Godfrey Muchai Njenga

vl
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,lttrtual Report and l'inancial Statenents for The l'ear l:ttdtd 30tt' June 202i

3. Esther Wairimu Mbiyu

Posrtron Hosp,ital Board Member, chairperson

financc and general pr[poses sub-corrunittee

Date of.llirth- 9th October 1953

Key Qualifications

O-level l97l

Diploma in physiotherapy

BA in psychology

MSc in management and organisatioDat development

Work Experience

variou' assignments jwith N.-jOs- USAID, NORAD,

AGSP. AED-ASP, KH.A, CORAT-Africa, CHAK

1915-19'79- Physiotherapist at lvrinistry of Health -

KNH ar.r: Coast General Hospitals
I

Position. Hospital Board Member

Date of birth- 5s August 1958

Kev O ualifications

1978-EAEC

i 981 - 1983-Primar5. certificate and certificate iir

literacy and adult education

2000-diploma in education

I 983- I 984-furoni primary school teacher

I 984-20 I O-Lifiuru town school teacher

vll

Work Experience
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5. Dr Mary Wambui Njoroge

PpS!-Sn: Secretary to the board

I)ate olbirth- lTth December 1985

kev qualifications

2012-MBChB Medicine and surgery

work experience

2013-2014- Kiambu level 4 hospital inten. then MO

2014-2}lg- MO in charge Kihara level 4 hospital and

Kiambaa SCMOH

2019-2020- MO in charge Lusigetti level 4and

Kiicuyu SCMOH

2021-jar2O22-VO in charge Karuri level 4 hospital

and Kiambaa Subcounty Medical Officer of Health

(scMoH)

v,l I
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4. Ke1 r\larr:rgcnrent'l'eam

Date of birth- I 7th December 198-5
Dr Mary \\/anrbu i Njoroge

Medi:al officer in charge

MBChB Medicine anjl surgery

Duties

Grace Wairimu Thiong'o
Date of birth 14rlr April 1982

Nursing services manag6r

Diploma in registered community health nursing (KRCHN)

Duties

-coordinate and oversee nursing services in the facility
and various departrnents

-allocation of duties to staff in nursir:g and support

.' staff
- oversee and give nursing services as a nurse

Eunice Mutboni Ndonga
Date of birth i4rH April 1990

Senior Supply-chain Management Officer

Diploma in Purchasin! and Supply Management

Duties

-coordinate all procurement activities in the facility
-invite timely quotations timely so as to coordinate
quarterly purchases

-to organise disposal activities of idle and surplus
stores

to manage inventory activities

lx

- chairperson of HMT and other committees
-secretary of hospital board

- oversee and give clirical services as medical officer
-oversee daily i61n.11ont of all deparrments of the

:i.,.cility

-a, thorise payments as per budeet and as a signatory
of facility accounts
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Jedidah \\/ambui Njogu

James Kiarie Kiboi

Philip Githongo Kahunga

Date of birth 27rH June 1989

Accountant in charge

Duties

- Preparation Revenue Report on monthly basis

-Expenditure analysis through monthly bank reconciliation

iEnsure optimal utilization of Budget issued tbrough AIES
- Preparation of Quarterly and Anr:ual Financial Report.

Date of birth 29th Marcb 1985

Laboratory In Charge

cal laboratory tech-oologist 2

Duties

-coordinate all services i.n the laboratory, including
reagents stock control a:rd equipment care

- perform lab tests on clients at facility
-infection control and disease surveillance at facility
- prepzlre monthly laboratory reports

x

Date of birth 14rH November 1987

ihamracy in Charge (Pharmaceutical technologist II)

Diploma in Pharmaceutical techr:ologist

Duties

-Coordinate and oversee running ard operations of the

pharmacy department. '
-Making pharmacy commodities orders.

-pharmacovigilance reports

-Allocagi<i'n of duties to pharmacy staff.
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Fr anklin Mwangi Manjari

Linet Warui

Date of binh 5'h July 1994

llospital Sa.ritation in Charge & Public Heatth Ofticer

Duties

- Reduce health risks arising from inadequate

sanitation and hygiene,poor housing and
cnvironmental pollution,and ensure work place safcn,
-Protect consumers' health by ensuring that food and

water safety.

-Ensure conkol of all disease vectors and vermin in
vessels, bouseholds and the environment in line rvith
CAP 242.

-Ensure sanitation anc hygiene standards are

maintained and Kenya National lnfection Prevention
and Control. p.llicl guidelines and measures are
inrplemented in health facilities.

Date of birth 23'd August 1993

Nutrition technologisf 3

Diploma nutriticin an-d health

Du ties

- srock control of nutrition supplements
- management of kitchen services and commodities at

facility
- children's growth monitoring
- nutrition counselling to patients

Date of birth- 2nd December 1981

Clinical officer in charge

Diploma in Clinical Medicine and community health

Du ties

-allocation of clinical officer duties

-Coordi-nation and montbly repo(ing of clinical services in the

OPD

-Give clinical services in the facility as a Clinical officer
report and surveillance of infection prevention procedures

xl
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Nyalhuna Level 4 Hospital (Kianbu ('ou tt t.l Oovernnrent)
Annual Rep ort and Financial Stalements for'fhe Year Ended 30tt' June 2023

5. Chairman'sStatement

The board of management of Nyathuna level 4 hospital continue to operate and work closely ri,ith

the capable hospital management team led by the Medical Superintendent Dr Wambui.

The facility remains almost the same as the previous year, despite one or two changes fronr the

county government, such as the repair of the facility borehole which is now working, havi-ng been

rehabilitated.

The KPI-,C, through the intervention of their senior rural managelnent, have also provided great

assistance in regards to power disruptions and repair of transformer supplying power to the borehole

unit. Special thanks to the KikuyL, Water Company for ileir assistance to avert water sho.tage

during this episode.

'i ::e issue of medication is well addressed as the facility is w.:ll supplied with essential drugs.

The board's three sub-committees of i.nance, human resource aod facility improvement have be'- rn

working and are functional. The bi.r rd continues to submit recommendations and proposals .ln

behalf of the faciliry and waits on response from the Kiambu County Government.

Ch allenges

We have experienced a hard and difficult year; the issue of staff shortage grows every day-

Proposals and Recommendations

It is the board's proposal and recommendation that when funds are available, the facility will require

the following:

. Building of wards,

. Surgical theate,

. X-raY Fachine,

. Burning chamber /inci-nerator,

. Renovation of the facility, especially the ceilings, and

. Furniture for patients and staff

Way Forward

We would like to see a level4 hospital fully equipped as this is our mission, to enable us to compete

with the private facilities around.

x1l



Annuul Report and Finattcioi Statementsfor T'he Yeo,' Endcl J0't' June 2023

Finallr,. it is my humble request to the Chief Medical Olllcer of Health and the Health

Mirristcr to please visit the facility.

Signed

CH,,\]II,ES MBURU WAINAINA

CHAII{MAN

xlll
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6. Report of the Medical Superintendent
'l'he following is a report regarding the issues al'lecting the facility, its challenges and

achievements during the financial year, labelled under tire pillars of health.

li ea lth information sy$eIo!:
'l'he facility uses an EMR system (check health inlbmation system) to enable registering

altd recording client treatment data, as well as financial records of payments made by clients.

Use of the system had been suspended before due to equipment breakdown; the thermal

receipt printer and computers, and is dependent on the first on contact patient registration

b1,the available cashier and diligence ofmedical personnel to record relevant patient data.

I'requent power outages also affect data quality.

Also, the system requires r'pdating and repairs, orving to errors particularly in the pharmacy

billing and stock management functions. The proprietor of the system is unavailable and

non-responsive when contacted. We await the neu' s),stem recently proposed by the county

govemment.

The only other record available is shorthand of clien: name. diagnosis and treatment entered

in physical MOH 705,{ and 7058 books as well as r:-introduced night reports.

The cornprehensive care department (CCC) initially depended on physical file records, but

was provided further ICT equipment (tablets) to enter and attain data in the nationwide

Electronic Medical Record (EMR) system. This he;ps counter the challenge of following up

on migrating clients and treatment defaulters.

The Nutrition and nursing- CWCA4CH department also often lacks reporting tools.

Frequent sub-county administration supervisions assist in highlighting and providing

solutions to these challenges.

Challenges

lack of adult weighing machines, supplements for,undernourished children and adults,

antenatal and lactating mothers, altemative food regimens for diabetics and HfV and TB

clients.

xlv

Medical products, vaccines and technologies
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Shortage in supply of non'phr; nr:rceuticals, e.g., both clean and sterile surgical gkrvcs duc to

perding bills and increase ol c ,nr rnodiry costs in the market.

The facility relies on the transp,rt oi vaccines and county provided commodities by Krbete sub-

county and other level 4-5 r'chie lcs. rvhicb may be delayed as they are used in their os,n lacilities

or lack fuel.

A ch ievemen ts

There has been an adequate supplv of essential medication, lab and non-pharm comntodities lor

most of 2023, with less stock-outs of other su'.piies..

lncrease in the number of under : clients for groirth monitoring and free V.,iumin A and deworming

supplementation.

A good uptake of the re-introduced Roiavirus vaccine has drawn mothers tc the child welfare cli:,ic

and improved attendance.

Human Resnurccs

The facitity has treen subject to loss of personnel, in ihe nursing, clinicr.rn and support staff

departrnents, ow'ing to retirenent. abscondment, county postings and deaths with replaccments not

provided. This has placed a strair on the remaining personnel not able to cover all departments

adequately rvithln the required 24-hour coverage period. The personnel ale also often forced to

forgo their annual leaves, panicularl-v in the revenue, pharmacy (one personnel recently deceased),

laboratory 6ad slini6i2a departments, as facility lrnances are inadequate or unremitted to pay for

temporary locum servibes. The sub-county management also are unable to provide counry hired

staff from other facilities to cover these gaps, owing to a corresponding HR challenge in their

qualter.

Currently, the nurses are 9 in number, with one under recurrent mental-medical admissions, and

another senior nurse due to retire this year. Also, long tErm casuaVconhachral engagements with

delays in wages to bo ttr counry and hospital engaged staff, is causing demotivation.

Personnel cadre 202L-2022 2022-2023

medical offrcer I I

xv
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Nurses 9 8

Clinicians 3 3

Laboratory I I

Pharmacy 2 1

support staff 2

contracted casuals 4 4

Nutritionist I I

HAO

revenue officer/cal hier

0 0

12

Accountant I 1

procurement offic,lr I 2

ICT officer I 1

HRIO 0 0

Service Deliverv

The facility provides services i:r the following departments

I . General of tpatient

2. Casualty/injection room

3. Maternity inpatient

4. MCH-CWC and family plannin$

5. VCT, CCC & TB clinics

6. Pharmacy

7. Laboratory

8. NCD-MOPC clinic

xvl
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r\'tnthunu l-evel 4 Hospital (i;tambu Couttf.' Governmcntl
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Ilealth financin

A ch ievement

Linda Mama NHIF program is availed to both ANC, pcistnatal and maternity mothers and their

babies. However, for part of the year, it was limited to clients with IDs for over l8 years and birth

certificates for under l8 mothers. The NHIF restructured their policy to allow guardian ID in place

for birth certificates.

NHIF biometric system is now implemented with compatible ICT equipment, and enabled the

facility to provide the service to regular capitated patients and secondary school students under t}re

Edu Afua scheme.

Challense

xvlt

9 Occupational therapy- (free partner supported servicc)

10. Others- cervical cancer screcning, COVID-19 scr:cning and vaccination, and HPV vaccination

(-hallensr5

-fhere 
are reflerral system delays due to long waitilg timcs lor E.MS ambulances or county vehicles

from other facilities, with resultant increase i-n patient rnorbrdiry and mortality. Referrals are also

challenging when the higher-level facilities nearby arc overwhelmed and unable to take on

emergencies. This factor bas been noted to reduce maternitv inpatient numbers, as clientele opt to

visit facilities with an available theatre.

Tbe faciiity also lacks inpatient staffrng and wards to aicommodare severe cases requiring such

services.

24-hour services are not available at revenue, pharmacy and laboratory departments, tbat is on

'.'.'eekends and nighs.

The open waiting bay combined with extremely cold weather also discourages clientele attendance,

as r'.':ll as transport challenges affecting kavellers from Gikuni and Ruku.

Acb ievements

Linda Mama NHIF program is availeci to both'Antenatal Clinic (ANC), posbatal and maternif'

mothers and their babies-

The facility has done several oukeaches in polio, Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) and COVID-19

vaccination as well as involved in fret: COVID- l9 screening.
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Leadership and governance

Ch allenses

The facility recently lost a member of the hospital board and the gazetted replacement never availed

himself.

Lack of HAO, deputy NSM and HRIO. 
,

TheHAoisrequiredinseveralcommitteesandiskeyinHRandfinanciaimanagement.

A lack of HRIO provides a challenge in Health information systems and data management.

xvl:t

The facility has had only one cashier since January 2023 countywide re-postings, hence no 24 hour

or weekend coverage. The clinicians on dury were tberefore instructed to provide services at a

reduced standard consultation rate ofKsh. 50 lor all neu, (regishation fee is Ksh. 100) and revisiting

clients as well as provide a limited range of medication. l'he lack of lab and pharmacy services at

those times also discouraged patient attendance.

MPESA payments mode is still reiisted by clientele owing to Fuliza debts, tack of phones or

knowledge on use of the devices or application.

Services at night also have reduced patienr numbers and several patients'.rre unable to or decline to

pay-

Delays in financial reimbursements and increasing pending bills has discouraged suppliers from

engaging with the facility.

lnfrastructure

The facility is in a state of disrepair, witi, a great need of a general renovation, including signage,

removal of asbestos roofing, repair of sgilings damaged by pests (termites and rodents), floors,

windows, cabi:rets, locks and doors.

Waste disposal challenges owing to lack of buping cbamber /incineration services.

The open waiting bay combined with exnemely cold weather of the region 15 gninviting to patients.

The county government have comm-unicated that procurement processes for rehabilitation of the

facility are underway. The frnancipliintervention of county through the Chief Offrcer of Health also

alleviated a challenge in rep4ir of t$e facility's borehole that had resulted in a water shortage for

part of the year.
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facility currentlr doesn'l have an officially assigned deputy NSM.The lbrnter deputy

assisted the lead nurse in data managemeirt, non-pharmaceutical atld vaccine

ent as u,e ll as nursing duties and nursing HR management, when the senior is not

able.

ent

county govemmeltl instituted hospital board is active in community engagement and

ty oversight u,ith an aim of improving the facility

Nam"1t wqugtlt
Secretary' to th< Board

xlx
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7. Stattnrenl of l)erformance Against Predetermined Objectives

The Hospital l.ras strategic pillars and objectives within the currenl Strategic Plan for the

FY 2022- l:Y 2023'l-hese strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as lbllorvs:

Pillar l: Health financing

Pillar 2: Service Delivery

Nyathuna level 4 Hospital develops its annual work plans based on the above pillar.

Assessment of the Board;s performance against its annual work plan is done on a

quarterly basis. It achieved its performance targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its

strategic pillars. as indicated in the diagram below:

-Average cost

per discharge

-Average

length ofstay

- Bed

Turnover

-Immunization -

Child health '
Screening for

communicable

conditions -

Antenatal Care -

Prevention of

-oth". to child

HIV transmission

-Integrated Vector

mahagement

- Good hygiene

practices

- HIV and STI

prevention Control

and prevention of

neglected tropical

diseases

-Reil:rction in

mortality and

morbidity rates

from l0olo -

Reduction in

number HIV

prevalence. -

Reduction in the

NCD

complications

Health Financing Elimiuate

Communicable

conditions

Eliminate Non

Communicable

conditions -
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- Health promotion

and education for

NCD

- Institutional

Screening for

NCD's

- Workplace Flealth

& Safety
;

- Food quality &

Safety

- Heatth Promotion

and education on

violedce / injuries

- OPD/Accident and

Emergency

Management for

injuries

Service Provide essential

Meriical services '

-Average

waiting time

-Medical

equipment

utilization

General Outpatient

- integrated MCH /

Family Planning

services

- Accident and
I

Erirergency

- Emergency life

support

- Maternity

- Newborn services

- Reproductive

health

- In Patient services

-lncrease in the

nulnber of

deliveries

-Reduction of

waiting times for

patients.

- Diversification

of tests done at the

laboratory
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- Clinical

Laboratory

- Specialized

laboratory -

Pharmaceutical

- Specialized clinics

- Comprehensive

y,ruth friendly

services

xxll



Nyatltuna Lertl ,t ltospirol (.Kiamitu County Government)
Annual R ort und l;inunt'iul State terrts Jbr The Year Ended J|tt' June 2023

8. C'orporatr ( io verrr ance Statement

Roles and Functions o The .Boardf
(5) The Board shall-
(a) provide oversighr over the general administration of tire hospital;

(b) promote the development of the hospital;

(c) recommend to the Executive Member plans and programs for implementing the county health

strategies in the hospital; 
I

(d) recommend to the Executive Member budget estimatels;

(e) establishing a hospital-community participation and feedback plarfonn:

I

xxl

The board has lreld 3 meetings in the last financial year, with attendance hr ail board members as

well as NSM alid accountant. The remuneration of some board attendan:e Iecs for these sittings are

still pending. 'l'he nrernbers are to offer oversight role in terms offinance and peneral operations. If
chair is absent the vice chair can conduct the meeting.

The hospital board rvas appointed (under gazette notice of 166 April 2O2l) and its appointment and

duties are guided by the Kiambu county health services act2019 as follows:

(l) The Executive Member shall appoint a Board for a level four and abo..,e hospital, comprising

of--
(a) a chairpersor, '.r'ho shall not be a staff of the County Govemment with a ; inimum of a diploma;

(b) the hospital superintendent who shall be the secretary;

(c) four residents of the sub-county in which the hospitai is locdied who have attained basic Ievel

education considering gender parity and special interest groi/ps.

(2) The Board may co-opt any person with relevant expertise lecessary to assist the Board

deterrnine a matter before it. 
I

(3) A person shall not be appointed as a Chairperson ofa Board unless that person-
(a) is a Kenyan;

(b) possesses at least a diploma from an institution recognized in Kenya:

(c) has experience in management, leadership or adminisnation; and

(d) meets the requirements Chapter six of the Constitution.

(4) The Members of the,Board, other than the ex-b/ficial Member, shall serve for a term of three

ycars which terrn may be renewed once.
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(l) assessine the delivery of services at the hospital and advice the llxecrrtive Member;

(g) monitonng the hospitals performance against set targets and advice the L.xecutive Member; and

(h) car4,ing out any other function that may assigned by the Executive Member.

(6) The Executive Member may by Regulations prescribe tbe conduct of business of the Board.

Ethics and Conduct

(7) The Executivc Member may remove from office any member of the Board who-
(a) has been absent for three consecutive meetings of the Board u.rthout the permission of the

Chairperson:

(b) is adjudged bankrupt;

(c) is unable to discharge his or her duties due to physical or mental incapacity;

(d) violates or is suspected of violating the provisions of Chapter six cf the Constitution; or

(e) is charged with a criminal offencb in court of law or a haffic offence attracting aa imprisonment

term of a minimum of six months.
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9. Management Discussion anil .\ nal.r,sis

C lin icaUo p erational performanr..

Bed capacir.v of the hospital- the ftrcilirv currently has l0 beds in the maternity ward
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Overa llpatient atlendance durins the vear for both inoatient and out Datient

The year 2022-2023 had a total outpatient aftendance 21,568 of with a monthly average of 1800

patients, 3624 at specialized clinics. 10.938 general opD attendance and 7006 at MCH&Fp.

Total admissioris were 147 with 27 referrals and 1 14 deliveries.

The faciliry doesn't have a theatre.

Average length of stay for in patient is 24 hours.

S ponsorshin and oartners

The facility was initially partnered with CRISSP then later on the LVCT - Thibiti programme who

engage in support for HIV activities and EGPAF who support COVID-Ip 5slssning, testing and

patient follow-up.

o%
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Secretary to the Board
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10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporling

Nyathuna level 4 Hospital exists to transform livcs. It's u4rat guides us to deliver our

strategy, putting the client/Citizen first, delivering health services, and improving

operational excellence. Belory is an outline of the r-,rganisation's policies and activities

that promote sustainability.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Sustainability prompts us to think in terms of the future and using global

perspective, recognising the connections betrveen economy, society and

ecology. The concept carries the aim of improving quality of life for people

and communities across the globe, whilst protecting the natural systems upon

which life depends. We support 17 Sustaini ble Development Goals adopted

by tlN Member States in Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for 
i

Sustainable Development. It reflects the commitment behind the Global Goals

to make further advances on social progress. economic growth and

environmental protection, balancing the three pillars of sustainable

development. iVe have engaged in Communitl' Dialogues to sensitis', the

community on the seryices we offer and any feedback that hey provide is key

to improving our services. Continuous ploughing of the Fif back into the

facility has aiso been key in planning and sustaining the activities o i the

hospital

ii) Environmental perf6rmance

We intend to have a burning chamber which we utilise in burning waste the

ones that are put in the black yellow and red bags. Due to lack ofincinerator,

we don't bum sharps but take them to Kiambu Hospital Incinerator 
.

iii) Employee welfare

Hiring is on basis of competitive and fair recruitment looking out for Gender

balance and following all applicable laws of the land with regards to

employment. Workers are provided with Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

and other protective materials to minimize exposure and injury at the Hospital.

The hospital is OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007)

comPliant.

xxvlll
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ir)

v)

Market place p ra cl ices

The organisation should outline its efforts ro:

a) Iiesponsible conrpetition practice. Procurement processBs are done

competitivcll' and tairly offering opporfunity to all people groups. Nl,arhuna

level 4 Hospital follows to the latter PFM and Public Procurement and Asset

Disposal Act

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations Nyathuna level 4 Hospiral

maintains good business practices, and treats its own suppliers responsibly by

horrouring contracts and respecting payment practices. Put in place guidelines

to otl'er equal busincss opportunities.

, ) Responsible marketing and advertisement We rnainrrin ethical marketing

practices and a culture of Transparency. Protection of data, commitment to

sustainability and human rights

d) Product stewardship. Set le,vs and acts in safeguarding its consumers

Corporate Social Responsibility / Com.nunity Engagements

Conduct community outreaches. Like medical camps in the surrounding

Nyathuna area u,here we reacir out to special groups like patients with special

needs and PLWD.

I
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The Board members subntit their repori together with the Audited Financial Statentents for

the year ended June 30. 2023. which show the state ofthe hospital's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Nyathuna level 4 Hospital are to promote and participate in

provision of integrated and high,quality promotive, preventive, curative and rehabilitative

health care services to all.

Results

'Ihe results of the entit,v- for the year ended June 30 are set out on page 1 to

Board Of Management

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page VII to XII. Dr

Mary Wambui was appointed MOIC/CEO/Secretary of Board with effect from 17 Jan2022.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the facility in accordance with

lArticle 229 of the Constirution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015

Name ffiurgqY d'q"8rlt

Secretary to the Board

xxx

11. Report of The lloard of Management



Nyathuno Level 4 Hospital (Kiombu CounU, Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stotements for The Year Ended 3At' June 2023

12. Statement of Board of Management's Responsibilities

Section 164 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and Kiambu county health Act

2019 requires the Board of Management to prepare financial statements in respect of
Nyathuna level 4 Hospital. which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

facility at the end of the financial yearlperiod and the operating results of the facility for

that yearlperiod. The Board of Management is also required to ensure that the facility

keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial

position of the facility. The council members are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets ofthe facility.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the

Nyathuna level 4 Hospital financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the facility for and as at the end of the financial year (period) ended on

June 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial

management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the

reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records. which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity, (iii) designing,

implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements. whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets of the facility; (v)

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Management accepts responsibility for the facility financial statements,

which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable

and prudent .judgements and estimates. in confbrmity with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS). and in the manner required by the pFM Act,20l2 and

Kiambu County Health Services Act 2019. The Board members are of the opinion that the

facility's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of facility transactions

during the financial year ended June 30,2023 and ofthe facility financial position as at

that date. The Board members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records

maintained for the facility, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the facility

financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

xxx I
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Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the facility

will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this

statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on

and signed on its behalfby:

S\"{l?-"1*

4-

Nanr

Chairperson Board of Management Accounting Officer

Name: A/I*AV qtqrvagutq./q 4l
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NYATHUNA LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 - COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF KIAMBU

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital -
County Government of Kiambu set out on pages 1 to 53, which comprise of the statement
of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison

Report of the Audilor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023-County Government

of Kiambu
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of budget and actual amounts for the year the ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.
I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Kiambu as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
Accrual Basis and comply with the Public Finance Managemenl Ac| 2012, the County
Governments Act, 2012 and the Health AcL,2017 .

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid !n-Kind

The statement of financial performance as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements
reflects in-kind contributions from the County Government of Kshs.200,000. The Hospital
received services from ten (10) medical staff employed and paid by the county. However,
the expenditure was not disclosed in the financial statements and the payroll was not
provided for audit verification.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the amount of Kshs.200,000 in
respect of in-kind contributions from the County Government could not be confirmed.

2. Variances in the Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.264,700. The balance is in respect of outstanding claims totalling
Kshs.264,700 while the NHIF data reflects the amount owed to Nyathuna Level4 Hospital
as Kshs.696,450 resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.431,750.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the receivables
from non-exchange transactions balance of Kshs.264,700 could not be confirmed.

3. Non-Disclosure of Propefi, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, review of Hospital records and physical verification revealed various assets
including land, buildings, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment which were
not disclosed in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents for land were
not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of Nil property, plant
and equipment balance could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Governmenl

of Kiambu
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The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.10,000,000 and Kshs.2,415,120 resulting to
an underfunding of Kshs.7,584,880 76% of the budget. However, the Hospital spent
Kshs.1 ,780,880 against actual receipts of Kshs.2,415,120 resulting to an under-utilization
of Kshs.634,240 or 260/o of the receipts.

The under-funding and under-utilization affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, I confirm
that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-Compliance with Universal Health Coverage (UHC) Requirements

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023 - County Governmenl
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to staff deficits
establishment.

by ninety-one (91) staff requirements or 90% of the authorized

Staff Requirements
Level4
Standard

Number
in
Hospita! Variance Percentage (%)

16 I 94

Anesthesiologists 2 0 100

General Surgeons 2 0 2 100

Gynecologists 2 0 2

Pediatricians 2 0 2 100

Radiologists 2 0 2

Registered Community
Health Nurses

75 I 66 88

Total 101 10 91 90

ln addition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Act, 2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate.

Reporl of lhe Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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Service

Level4
Hospital
Standard

Actuals in
the
Hospital Variance

Percentage
(%l

Bed Capacity 150 I 141 94
lncubators (Newborn) 5 1 4
Resuscitative in Theatre 1 0 1 100
Resuscitative in Labour Ward 2 1 1

Functional ICU Beds 6 0 6 100
HDU Beds 6 100
Renal Unit with Dialysis
Machines

5 5 100

Functional Operating
Theaters Maternity and
General

2 0 2 100

MedicalOfficers 15

2

100

100

80

50

0 6

0



2. Failure to Transfer Revenue to the County Revenue Fund Account

The statement of financial performance reflects rendering services-medical services
income of Kshs.1 ,521,220 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. However,
the amount was not transferred to the County Revenue Fund Account. This was contrary
to Section 81(1-3) of the Public Finance and Management (County Governments)
Regulations 2015.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Gonclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm
that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls,
risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Weak lnternal Gontrols on Management of Pharmaceutical suppties

Review of the management of pharmaceuticals and non-pharmaceuticals revealed that
the deliveries to the Hospital stores between July, 2022to June, 2023 shows they were
received without the involvement of an inspection and acceptance committee. Further,
the Hospital dispatched pharmaceuticals of an unknown value to Wangige, Tigoni and
Kihara Sub-County Hospitals without any authority or internal policies regarding inter-
hospital borrowing of pharmaceuticals.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on the management of
pharmaceutical supplies could not be confirmed.

Report of tlu Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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2. lneffective Governance by the Board of Management

Review of the statement of financial performance reflects Board of Management
expenses totalling Kshs.43,500. However, during the year under review, the Board
operated without an approved annual Board work plan and calendar contrary to
Sectionl .1 .1 of Mwongozo Code of Governance. Further, from the review of Board of
Management records, two meetings were held during the year without an approved
workplan to support the meetings.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the Hospital's oversight and governance could
not be confirmed.

3. Lack of a Risk Management Policy

4. Failure to Maintain a Fixed Asset Register

The statement of financial position and Note 31 to the financial statements reflects a Nil
balance for the property, plant and equipment. Review of the assets records indicated
that the Hospital owns land and buildings, office furniture and other Hospital equipment
such as incubator, baby cots and labour ward resuscitators of undetermined value.
However, the Hospitaldid not maintain a fixed asset register.

ln the circumstances, the adequacy of the controls on assets could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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During the year under review, Management did not have in place a risk management
policy contrary to Section 158(1) of the Public Finance Management County
Governments Regulations, 2015 which requires each county government entity to
develop risk management strategies and a system of risk management to enable the
county to identify and develop appropriate risk strategies in order to improve on effective
and efficient management of public resources.

ln circumstances, the effectiveness of the Hospital's risk management measures could
not be confirmed.



Responsibilities of the Management and the Hospital Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high levelof assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Lewl 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202 3 - County Government

of Kiambu
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CBS

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyathuna Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Governmenl

of Kiambu
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Nyatltuna L
Annual Rep

evel 4 l'lospital (Kiambu County
ort and L-inancial Statetnents for

Government)
The Year Ended 30'h June 2023

14. Statement of Financial Performauce for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Revenue fr om non-exchange transactions

Transfers from the County Government
I

25,326,460Ln- kind contrrbutioos from the County
Government

8

?.00,000

9

l0Public contributions and donatioix

25,,326,460200,000

Revenue from exch ange tratrsactions

ll t,52t)220 r ,660,1 I 8

t2

Rendering of services- Medical Sr;rvice
lncome

Revenue fiom rent of facilities

t3Finance /Interest lncome

t4Miscellaneous I-ncome

Revenue from exch ange transactions

1,721,220 26,,996,578Total revenue

Expenses

3,06s,610t5 378,332MedicaVClinical costs

810,016 23,367,r90l6Employee costs

43,500 28,500t7Board of Management ExPenses

l8Depreciation and'(mortization expense

l9 22t,300Repairs and mai,ntenance

20 443,024Grants and subsidies

216,4482t 327,0r2General expenses

22Finance costs

26,677,7482,223,184Total expenses

23Gain/Loss on disposal of non-Curreot assets

6

7

Grar is from donors and development parhers

Transfcrs from other Government entitieg

Other gains/(losses)

1



Nyalhuna Level 4 Hospitol (Kiambu Courtty Government)
,4nnuol Reporl ond Finoncial Slalements for The Year Ended 3At' June 2023

Unrealized gain on fair value of investments 24

Medical services contracts Gains/Losses 25 693,900 742.250

Impairment loss 26 (-) (-)

Gain on foreign exchange transactions

Total other gains/(losses)-nhif 693.900 742,250

Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 191,936 1,051,090

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on

and signed on its behalf by:

rJl ls lu *f

Chairman

Board of Management

Head of Finance

ICPAK No: 2so9D
Medica uperintendent

2

Not 2022t2023 202u2023
Dcscriirtion

e Kshs Kshs



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospilal (Kiambu County Government)

for The Year Ended 30th June 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30 June 2023

Asscts

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27 262,056
Receivables from exchange transactions 28 t,428,409
Receivables from non-exchange trunsactions 29 264,100

l0 1,028,295
'I'otal Current Assets

lnventories

I,555,051 1,429,409

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 3t

lntangible asscts 32

Investrnent ro

Total Non-current Assets

'l'otal assets l,555,051 1,429,409

l,iabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payablcs 34 1,363,1l5 1,3 r 8,62s
Refundable deposits from customers/PatienLs 35

Provisions 36

Finance lease obligation 3'7

Current portion of deferred income 38

Current portion of borrowings 39

Social Benefis 41

Total Current Liabilities 1,363,1 l5 1,319,625

Non-currcnt liabilities

Provisions l6
Non-Current Fioance lcase obligation 37

Non-Current portion of dcferred income 38

Non - Currcnt portion of borrowings l9
4o

Social Benefits 4t

3

Annual Report and Financial Statements

33

Scrvice concession liability



Nyathuno Level 4 Hospital (Kiantbu C'ounty Governmen t)
Attnual Report ond Financiol Stolenrents for The Yeor Ended 3At, June 2023

Total Non-current Iiabilities

Total Liabilities 1,363,1l5 I,318,625

Revaluation reserve

Accumulated surplus/Defi cit I 9l .936 I,051.080

Capital Fund

r 91 .936

Total Net Assets and Liabilities 1,555,051 2,369,705

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on

and signed on its behalfby:

Chairman

Board of

Management

Head of Finance dM

u (oalzoz-'1

c Superintendentc

4

2022t2023

Ktt.t-
202U2022Description Note

Kshs

Net assets

1,051,080

ICPAK No:200,t0



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiantbu Cou ,tty Government)Annual RcPort and Financial Statentents or The Year Ended 3|th June 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset for f.he year Ended 30 June 2023

As at Juty l, 2021

Revaluation gain

Surplud(defici t) for the year
1,05 1,080 l,0s 1,080Capital,/Development grants

As at J une 30, 2022
1,051,090 1,051,090

At July I, 2022
I,051,080 1,051,090Revaluation gain

Surplus/(de ficit) for the
I 9l ,936

r 9 r,936CapitaUDevelo pment grants

At June 30,2023
1,243,016 1,243,016

,

year



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kianrlu Courrtt'Oor, rnntrnt)
Annuui Report and l-inancial Statements for 'l'ltt l eur llnded 30tt' June 2023

17. Statement of Cash Florvs for l'hc Ycar I.,nded 30 June 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Transfers from the County Government

Receipts

200,000

Grants from donors and development partners

Transfers from other Govemment entities

Public contributions and donations

Rendering of servicc,i- Medical Service lncome

Revenue from rent of facilities

Miscellaneous re.ceipts(s pecify)

Total Receipts

Finance / interest incom:

1,880,504

2,080,504 I,I 17,063

Payments

MedicaVClinical costs 301,912 285,9 l0
Employee costs 95t,724 6r4,606
Board of Management Expenses 28,500

Re :Lirs and maintenance 221,300

Grants and subsidies

Generai expenses 2t6,448
Finance costs

l,8lg,44g L,ll7,064
Net cash flows from operating activities 42 262,056

Casb florvs from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment &
rntan ble assets

(, (-)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and
mente u

Ac sition of ilvestments (, (,
Net cash flows used in investin g activities (-) ( )
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowlrgs
(-)I

I o
Ca tal grants received

6

t,l 17,063

3ts,0r2

Refunds paid out

Total Payments

Repa.yment of borrowings



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Couni' Oovcrnment)
Annual Report and Financial Statements Jb r The Year Ended i0il' June 2023

( ) C)Net cash florvs used in financing activities

262,0s6

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

21Cash and cash equivalents as at I July

21 262,056Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June

7



Nyalhuna Level 1 Hospital (Kiambu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30th June 2023

18, Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for Year Ended 30 June 2023

"-(c- 
d ) t=tl lt "/"

Kshs

17.70%

jYo
Capital expenditurc

:l c=(a+l))
Ksh s K.shs

tl

Kshs

Revenuc
K.shs

200,000 200,000
o//o

Transfers from the County Government

Grants from donors and development partners

Transfers from other Govemment entities

%Public contributions and donations

7,584,880 23%Rendering of services- Medical Service
Income

3,936,730 s,863,270 9,800,000

/oRevenue from rent of facilities
Finance / interest income o//o

Miscellaneous receipts (s p e c i fy) %

2401,Total income 3,936,730 6,063,270 10,000,000 2,,4L5,120 7,594,880
Expenscs

MedicaUClinical costs 4,513,668 7.73vo2,089,000 2,803,000 4,892,000 378,332
Employee costs 140,330 370,270 1, I 10,600 810,016 300,5 84 72.93%

78,000 12,c00 43,500 46,500 48.33%90,000
Repairs and maintenance 165,000 1,028,700r,085,000 r,250,000 221,300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
General expenses I ,793,000 2,557,400 327,012 2,330,3 88 12.30%
Finance costs

___qf4l9!_

Refunds

Surplus for the period 634,960 (634,960)
3,936,700 6,063,,270 10,000,000 I,7E0,160 8,219,E40 t7 .80"/"

t00%200,000

%

2,215,t20

Remuneration of directors

Grants and subsidies o//(\

Budget notes
Changes between the original and final budget is due to reallocations to meet the requirement for Level 4 Hospitals lo have a budget ofat
least Ksh. 10,000,000

8



ttYt'rrthunn I.cvel 4 Hospital (Kiambu Counlt Governmenl)
,,ltt n ttul Rep ort and Financial Statenenls for The Year Ended 30't' .lune 2023

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

Gcneral Information
Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital entity is established by and derivcs its authority and

accountability from Health Act of 2017. The entity is wbolly orvned by the Government

of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is health care

scrvrce

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

Thc financial statements have been pr.:pared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amQunts of certain items of properry, plant, and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value. impaired assets at their

esrimated recoverable amounts and actr-rarially determiled liabilities at their present

value. The preparation of finar'cial statements in conformity with lnternational Public

Sector Accoutrthg Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estirnates :nd assumptions. lt
also rerluires maDagemeot to exercise. judgement in the process of applying the hospital t
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or

where assumptions aod estimates are significant to the financial statements. The financial

statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional

and reporting currency of the hospital. The financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the PFM Act, and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS). The accounting poliiies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years

presented.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards

r. r.{erv and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

J u ne 2023.

-t

Applicabte: l't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the frnancial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS

Financial

Instmments

4t:.

9



Nyallruna l.evel i Hospitnl (Kiui:,bu (.1.'u,tt Goverttnrefi$
Annual Reporl auJ Financiul SL'tt:ncr'rs lor T ltc Year Ended 30tt' June 2023

IPSAS 41 provrdes us('rs of hnancial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classificatirn and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

assel's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is

he ld:

Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedgir,g arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a srong link between an

Entiry's risk manageDcent strategies and the accounting
treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
.I1anapement strategy.

Applicable: ls'January 2023 i

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

represenlatlveness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

s tatem ents and gen eral-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such sociat benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) Tbe key feahrres of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entiry's

financiaI performance, financial position and cash flows.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting fiom

IPSAS 41,

Applicable: lrt January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l w,as issued.

l0

. App)ying a single fonvard-looking expected credit loss

nrodcl that is applicable to all fr.nancial instruments subject

to imparrment testing; and



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kianhu Contfty Governuent)
Annual Rep ort and Financial Stutt'ntents for The Year Ended 30tt' June 2023

b) Arre.ndments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omiued

u,hen I PSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendm€nts to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS.4I was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance otr classirying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Applicable 1" January 202j

. IPSAS 22 Diclosure of Financial Information about the General

Governlnent Sector.

Amendmens to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

. IPSAS 39 Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l$ January 2023.

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year

ended 30 June 202i.

Applicable ls January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

IPSAS 43

11



,t_twthutrtt l-evel 4 Hospital (Kiatrbu C,'rttt1t Governuent)
I tr urtul !1,'port atrd Financiul Sttte,rterits for 7'he Year E dcd 30't' J';,;a 202i

financial statements to assess the effect thar lcasci have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflou,s ol an l:ntiry.

Th.e new standard requires entities to recognisc, measure an..l present

information on right of use assets and leasc liabilities.

IPSAS M:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

I)iscontinued

Operations

Applicable Is January 2025

The Standard requires:-

i. Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation ofsuch asse6 to cease and:

iL Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale .c be

presented separately in the statemenr of financial position and the

results ofdiscontinued op€;iations to be presented separately in the

statement of financial performance.

iii) Early adoptiott of standards

t2

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year



tyyathu,la Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Courtty Governnent)
An tt ual Report and Firrancial Slaleuents for The Yeor Ended .10't' June 2023

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non-exchange translctions witb other govemment entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaini-ng control of the asset (cash. goods, services and property) if
the transfer is free from conditions aod it is probable that tlre cconomic benefits or service
potential. related to the as:ret will flow to the hospital and can be measured reliably. To the

extent that there is a related condition attached that would sjvc rise to a liabitity to repay the

amouDt, the amount is recorded i-n the statement of financial position and realised in the

statement of fiorucial performance over the useful life of the asset that has been acquired using

such funds.

ii) Revenuc from erchange trarisactions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of the ta:nsaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incuned to datc as a perceDtage of total

estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome canDot be measured reliably, revenue is

recognizgd only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the signilicant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transfened toithe buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Inrerest income is accrued using the effective yield metbod. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the fir:ancial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

interest inmme for each period.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straighrline basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

13



,\.yathurru Level 4 Hosl,ital (Kittnhu Courtty Governutcttt)
,4nnual Reporl und Fitontiul ,i,rttcnettlsfor Tlrc feu Ended 30tt' J:tne 2023

Notes to lhe Financiol Stotcnrnts (Conlinued)

b. Budget in formation

The original budget for l:y 202212023 was approved by Board oD 2"d Seplenrber 2022.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budgct in

accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additionai

appropriations are addcd to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respcctivc

approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional

appropriations of targets on the I;Y 2022/2023 brtdget following the Board's approval. 1te

entity's budget is prepared on a different basir tr, the actual income and expenditure disclosed

in the lurancial statements. The financial stateorents are prepared on accrual basis usin-e a

classification based on the nature ol expenses in the statement of financial performance.

whereas the budget is prepared on a casir basis. The amounts in the financial statements \ /cre

recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same

basis as the approved budget.

A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

budget, is then presentcd in the statement of comparison of budget and acF-,al amor.rnts. ln

addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the tormats and classification scbemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual arnounls

on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and ach:al amounts

and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance bas been presented on page 8

under section l8 of these financial statements.

c. Tares

Sales taxl Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the arnount ofsales tax, except:

) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable

from the taxation authority, in which case, the'sales tax is recognized as part of the

cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

D When receivables and payables are siated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autboritv

is included as part of receivables or payables iJ the statement of financial position.

t4



Notes to lhe L'inancial Stutc ents (Continued)

d. Investment proptrty

Invesftnent properties arc rreasured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

amouDt includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment propert-v at the

time that cost is incurred if the recogrition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-

day maintenance of an investment property.

lnvestment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value

at the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to iniiial recopSrition, investrent properties are measured

using the cost model and are depreciated over a period of reasonable years. lnvestment

properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment

property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service

potential is expected from is dispopal. Tbe difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amolnt of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-

recognition. Transfers are made to or from invesEnent property only when therr; is a cbange in

use.

c. Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at htervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is

recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacemenl if tbe

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquted in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

l5
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\'t,aIlruta Level 4 Ho-,pital (Iiiambu Count'' Got'err.nant)
irrnual Reporl tnd Firanciai Stalent( ts for The Y' ,,,. Ettdr -]0't' June 2023

Notes lo the Financial Statetrtents (Continued)

f. Leases

Finance leases are leascs that transfer substantialll, the cntirc risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets hcld undcr a finance lease are capitalized at

tbe conunencement of ttre lease at the fair value of the leascd property or, iflower, at the present

value of the furure minimum lease payments. 1'he Entity'also recognizes the associated lease

Iiability at the inception of the lease. The liability recognizcd is measured as the present value

of the fun:re minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsecuent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned bet,veen finance charges and

reductir','r of the lease liabiliry so as to achieve a .onro,,t rate of interest on the remaining

balance oi the liabitity. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

.r.n .:set held under a finance lease is depreciated over the usr:t,l iire of the asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of
lhe lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the rstimated useful life of the asset

aod the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not.rensfer subsiantially all the risks and benefits incidental

lo ownership of the leased item to the Entity. operating Iease payments are recognized as an

operating expeDse in surplus or deficit on a straighr-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initiatly recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their lair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognitioo, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. lntemally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitali2ed and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expendinrre is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

ll

t6



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kian$u County Govcrtrntant)
Anrtual Report atd Financial Statements lor 'l'ltc I tttr l:nded 30tt' June 2023

Notes to the Financial Stdtements (Continued)

h. Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Devclopment costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be

available for use or sale

> Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

.) The asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

) The availability of resources to complete the asset

! The ability to measure reliably the cxpendirure during development.

Foltowing initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

^rnortization and accumulated impairn^r.nt losses. Amortization 6f the asset begins when

development is complete and the asset is aVailablc for use. lt is amortized over the period of

expected future benefit. During the period bf develcpment, the asset is tested for impairment

annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i. Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measuremeDt and de-recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces oe*lrul"s for hedge accounting and a new impairment model

for financial assets. The hospital does not have anl hedge relationships and therefore the new

hedge accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity

measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a

financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

t7



Nyatl:una Le:cl 4 Ilo:pitul (Kiambu Counfi; Govertuent)
.4nnual Repori nn F jnuntial Statententsfor The li',rr Ended 30tt June 2l)7J

Noles to tlte l;inuntiul .\tutentenls (Continued)

Flnancial asccts

Classification of financial assr:ts 
;

The entity classifics its irnancial assets as subsequently measued at amortised cost. lair value

tbrough net assets/ ctluitv or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management nrodel for financial assets and the contractual cash flow charactcristics of

the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial assct is

held within a managemcnl model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash llows and the contrachral terms c,f the finaocial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that arc solely paymens of principal and interest on the principirl

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is hclo

within the managemcnt rnodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting cortrartual

cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the fiaancial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlerest on the

principal amount outsta:rding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value throueh surplus

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair valuc rbrough net assets/ equity unless

an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investrnents in equity

iastnr.ment . :

Subsequent measu rement

Based on the business mcdel and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories lor financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortizcd cost

Financial assets that are beld for collection of contractual cash flows where those casb flows

represent solely paymens of principal and interest, and that are not desipated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instnrment that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

l8



Nyathu na Lcvel 4 I lospital (Kianfiu County Governuent)
Annual Reporl und l:inancial Statements for The Year Ended 30tt' .lune 202.1

Notes lo the Finoncial Staterrter s (Contiuued)

Fair valuc through nct assets/ equity

Financial assets tbat are held for collection of contractual cash flows and lor sclling the

fr,nancial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely paymenls of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit.

lnterest ilcome fiom these finanuial assets is included in finance incomc using the effective

interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets tbat do not meet thd criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

:-1uity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A r,usiness model where the entity

riranages hnancial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of

the assets wculd result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amouDts. Trade and other receivables:re assessed for impairment oD a continuing basis. An

estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstandi.ng amounts at the

year end.

I mpairment

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with is financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

entity recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and

significant judgments made by manpgement in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out in Note 26. i

Financial liabilities

Classification

The entity classifies is liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

l9



Nyalhuna Level 4 Htspital (Kiambu Cotttrtt' (ioyt,rntntnt)
tlttttut:l Rept,rt and I:inan<,ial Slate,:.r rrlsfor'l'lta l'tnr linded 3|ti' June 2023

Notes to tlte Financial Statements (Continued)

j. Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recogrrition. 'l'o the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or ,or a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing eacb product to its prcsent location and conditions are accounted for

as follows:

!Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

! Finished goods and work in progrcss: co:t cf direct materials and labour, and a

proportion ol manufacturing overheads basetl onithe normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, invent.:ry is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class ofinventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

irominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current

rcplacement cost.Nei realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinar;,course of
operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale, exchange, or distributior, Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for

utilization or coDsumptioD i-n the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow o f resources embodying economic benefits

or service potential will be required to settle the obligation aod a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. 
i

where tbe Entity expects some or all of a provision ro bel reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbusement is virtually certain.

The experse relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursement.
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Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Countv Govtrnmenl)
Annual Report antl Financial Statemenrs for'fhe Year Ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statente,rls (Continued)

l. Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers providcd to i) specific individuals and / or households that

meet rhe eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the elfects of social risks and iii) Address the need of

society as a whole. The entity recolnises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

scheme at the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme

is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity will

incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

m. Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any coutingencies

in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

n

The Entity does not recognize a co:rtingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occulTence of one or more uncertain future

events Dot wholly w;thin the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately

reflected in the financial statemeris. lf it has become virnrally certain that an inflow of

economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,

the asset and ttre related revenue are recognized in the fnancial statemeDts of the period in

which the change occurs.

o. Nature and purpose of reserves

The entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements

p Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of cha:rges in accounting policy retrosPectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

2t
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Nyuttltunu Lrvl 4 lIospitrl (Kiambu Cou'rt1t Gcventment)
Annuul Rcport und l;inaut'ial Statcuenls for Tle Year Ended 3(t't' June 20) 3

Notes ttt tltt' I:inoncial Stale te ts (Continued)

q. l- nr ployce benefits

Retire mrnr bcnefit plans

The Entitv provides retremeot benefits for its employees and directors. Dclined contribution
plans are posl-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fxed contributioDs into a
separate cntrry (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay frfther
contributions if the fund does not hold suffrcient assets to pay all employec bcnefits relating to
cmployce service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to lund obligations for the
paymcnt of rctirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable. Dcfined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans orher than defined-
contributti,n plans. The defined benefit fi.rnds are actuarially valuetl tri-annualty on the
projected u,,it credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered ihrough lump-sum
paymenrs or increased future contributions on a proportiooal basis to all participating
employrrs. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the Fost-employment benefit
obligation.

r. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are init:rlly accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange on

the datc of the transaction. Trade creditc;s or debtors denominated in foreign cturency are

reported at the statemeot of financial position reporting date by applying tbe exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or fiom the reporting

of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,

are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

t Rclatcd parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individuauy or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parfies and comprise the directors, the

CEO/principal and senior managers. I

s. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifuing assets as part of properfy, plant and

equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during wbich the asset is being
acquired or constmcted and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further bonowing costs are charged to the statement of
financi al perfo rmance.



N),uthunu l.evcl 4 Hospital (Kiambu Courrt! Gover nte,rt)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30't' .lunt 2023

Notes to the l;inancial Staterrrents (pontinued)

u. Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arraogements that it enters into in

determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,

where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the fr?1ir) recognizes that asset

when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The opcrator must provide together

with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case ,rf assets other than

'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any

sigoificant residual interest in the asset at the end ofthe arangement- Any assets so recognized

are nreasured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been rccognized, the EnriD., also

recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

Cash and cash equivalents

Casb and cash equivalents comprise cash oil hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to known amoun'ts of cash aud are subject to insignificant risk of changes

in value. B ank account balances include amounts held at tbe Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial

statemenrs, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

authorised public offrcers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end of the financial year.

Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year bave been amended or

reconfigwed to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.
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Nyathund Level 4 Hospital (Kiumbu ('out,t.t' (;.t,tr te t)
Annual Report a d Fi,ratcktl Statamr'nts for Tlic Year l::ded 30tt'June 2023

5. Significant Judgments and Sotrrces of listimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's linancral statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, cstrrrates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets uiid liabilitics, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at thc

end of the reporting period. Howevcr. unccrtainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming th: future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ar

the reporting date, that have a sign,ficanr risk of causing a;material adjustment to the carrying

amouDts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity

b.lsed its assumptions a.uci estimates on parameters available when the consolidated irnancial

Statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change 1::1e to market changes or cLcumstances arising beyond the co::trol

of '.l\e Entiry. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions wher they occur.( IPSAS 1.140)

Us;ful tives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential funre use and value from disposal: 
'

and processes.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these cstimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date and are discotnted to present value where the effect is

material.
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Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiamhu Ct nty Governrne,rl)
Annual Repo rt and Financiol Statencnts for The Year Ended 30tt'June 2023

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

6. Transfers from the Countl'(lovernment

Unconditional grants
200,000Operational grant

Level 5 grants

Unconditional development granu

Other grants

antsCon ditional

health services for Universal care project (THUCP)

DANIDA
Wards Development grant

t

Paertiatric block grant

Administration block

Labora
200,000rants and s ubs id iesTotal government

6 b Transfers from The Coun Government

200,000200,000

Kiambu
County
Government

200,000Total 200,000

25

User fee forgone

Transforming
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:\'.y,vtthun:r l.evel ,l Hospilal (Kiufiu Courttlt Government)

uol Re orl tnd Finencial State renls or The Year Ended i|'t' J unc 202-l

otes to I,-inancial Statements Continued

I n Kind Contributions from The County Governnrent

Pharmaceuticals and Non-Pharmaceutical Supplies (other suppliers)

Utility bills

Totalgrants in kind

Grants From Donors and Devclopment Partners

Total grants from development
artners

8 (a) Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

7

S alaries and wages 22,606,160

Mcdrcal supplies-Drawings fughts (KEMSA)

2,720J00

25,326,460

Cancer Centre grant- DANIDA
World Bank grants

Paediatric ward gant- JtCA
Research grants

Other grants (specify) i

Donor e.g., DANIDA
JICA

World Bank

Tolal
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N),otltuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Countlt Governmant)
..lttttual Report arrtl Financial Statements fcr The Year llnded 30't' June 2023

r'.! otes to Financial Statements Coqtinued

9. l'ransfers From Other Government Entities

Transfer from Instinrte

10. Public Contributions and Donations

l0 (a)Reconciliations of amortised grants

Transfer from National Goverament (Ministry of Health)

Transfer from National Hospital

Donations from local leadership

Public donations

Donations from religious institutions

tions and individualsDonations from other internatio or

thero do

D onations in kind-amortised

Total donations and sponsorshi s

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current year receipts

Amortised a:rd transferred to revenue

Conditions to be met - remain liabilities

2'7

Total Transfers



Nyathuna Level 4 llospir,rl (h ,:nbu ( orttrty (iovenr:nent)
,'lnnual Reporl and Fitrutrt'itl .t tutt:mt,ti,; for The Year Ende,d l|th June 2023

Notes to Financial State n)rr)ls ('orrtinued

I l. Rendering of Scn'ices-ll rdical Service lncome

1,521,220

(The Hospital Pay Sy,'slem doesn't cotegorize the vtious charges for the services)

12. Revenue From Rent of Facilities

Pharmaceuticals

I .aboratory

Radiolosy

Orthopedic and Trauma Technology

Accident and Eo.ergency Service

Theatre

Ear Noss ar':{ Tkoat sen,ice

Nutntion service

Cancer centre service

Dental sc:vices

Paediatrics services

Re uctive health

Farewell home services

t,521,22) 1,660,r l8
Total revenue from the rendering of
services 1,660,1I8

Residential property !

Commercial property

Total Revenue from rent of facitities

Z6

Non-Pharmaceuticals

Anesthesia Service

Other medical services income (specifii)



Nyathuna Level 4 llospitul ( Xiunrbu Coungt Government)
Annual Report and l;inanriol Slatenre tsfior The Year Ended 3Ctt'June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statenrents (Continued)

13. Finance Anterest I nconre

(Provide bief explanation for this revenue)

14. Miscellaneouslncome

Cash investrnents and fixed dcposits

Interest income from short- term,/ current
deposits

lnterest income from 'l reasury Bills

Interest income from Treasury Bonds

Interest from outsta,td ing debtors

Total finance incomc

lnsurance recoveries

Iacome from sale of tender

Services concession ircome

Sale of goods (water, publications, containers etc)

Write backs (Deposits, payments in advance etc)

Bad debts recovered

Others (Specify)

Total Miscellaneous incomc i
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.\t.\,atlruna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu CounQt Govern,,tcnt)
.lnnual Report and Fitrd,rcial s'iale, enls for 7 he l'e"i; I'.ndt,: J0tt' June 2A23

No(es to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Mcdicali Clinical Costs

Other r.edical related clinical costs (.rpecrr)

Total rnedical/ clinical costs

16. Employec Costs

80,000

7,100

3,065,610

Dental costs/ materials

Laboratory chemicals and reagents '70,730

Public health activities

Food and Ration 82,107 87.6 r r

149,97 4 40,s00

77,843 2,'770,269

Uniform, clothing, and lincn

Dressing and Non-Pharmaceuticals

Health infonnation stationery

Pharmaceutical supplies

Reproductive health materials

Saniury and cleansing Materials 25,480

Purchase of Medical gases 1.3,075 9400

X-Ray/Radiotogy supplies

378,332

Salaries, wages, and allowances 785,408

Contributions to pension schemes 24.608 9,600

Service gratuity

Perlormance and other bonuses

Staffmedical expenses and Insurance cover

Group personal accident insurance and WIBA

Social contribution

Other employee costs (specifi)

Employee costs 810,016 23,367,190

30
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Nyatltuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Counq, Gorernnrttrt)
Attnual Reporl and Financial Statentents for The I'eur Ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continucd.)

17. Board of Management Expensls

18. Depreciation and AmortizatioL Expense

19. Repairs And Maintenance

Chairman's Honoraria

Sitting allowance 2 5,5 00 16,500

lnsurance expenses

Mileage

lnduction and training

18,000 12,000Travel and accommodation allowance

Airtirre allowances

Total 43,500 28,s00

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Itrvestment property carried at cost

Total depreciation and amortization

221,300Property- Buildings

Medical equipment

Office equipment

Fumiture and fittings

Computers and accessories

Motor vehicle expenses
I

Maintenance of civil works

221,300Total repairs and maintenance
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Nyalhuna rrt',, O 11o,piral 1A;tmbtt County Governmenl)
Annual Repori nnd li:iontiot .llate ,entsfor T'he Yenr Ended 30'h June 2023

Notes to the l-inanciul Statenrcnts (Continued)

20. Grants And Su bs id ics

Other grants and subsidies(specif.,)

otal grants and subsidies
(Other grans relotes to revehue odministralion costs)

21. General Expenses

443,024

4$,A.24

Communiry dcvelopn.rcnt and social work

Education initiatives and programs

Free/ subsidised medical camp

Disability programs

Free cancer scrccn ing

Social benefit cxpenses

Advertising and publicity exrr,-nses

Catering expenses

Waste management expcnses

lnsecticides and rodenticides

Audit fees

Bank charges

Conferences and delegations

1,926

Consultancy fees

Contracted services

Electricity expenscs 240,720 155,000

Fuel and Lubricants

]nsurance

Research and devclopment expenses

Travel and accommodation allowance 33,540

Legal expenses

Licenses and permits

Courier and postal services

Printing and stationery 17,000

Hire charges

Rent expenses

Water and sewerag€ costs 9,558

32
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Nyatltunt I-evcl 4 llospital (Kiantbu Counlt Governnent)
Annual Report ond I:inancial Statements for The Year Ended 30th June 2023

Skills development levies

Telephone and mobile phone servrces 51,371 21,908

lntemet expenses

Staff uaining and development

Subscriptions to professional bodies

Subscriptions to Dewspapers periodical,
magazines, and gazette Dotices

ibrary books/Ir4 aterials

Parking charges
-I

327,012Total General Expenses

22. Finance Costs

23. GainlLoss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

24. Unrealized Cain On Fair Value Investments

216,448

Borrowings (amortized cost)

Fir:ance leases (amortized cost)

Interest on Bank overdrafts/Guarantees

lnterest on loans from commercial banks

Total financc costs

Property, plant, and equipment

lntangible asses

Other assets not capitalised (specify)

Total gain on sale of assets

Investrnents at fair value

Total gain

))
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Nlmtliuna Level 4 Hospital (Kianbn Count.,' Oovtt;,ment.,
Annunl Reporl and F'inancial Staletnents Jo, l'ltt I tar E:;derl 30tt' June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continucrl)

25. Nledical Serviccs Contracts Gains il,ossr:s

26. Impairment Loss

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

Comprehensive care contracts with NHIF

Non- Comprehensive contracts care with NIIIF 693,900 742,250

Linda Mama Program

Waivers and Exemptions

Total Gain/Loss 693,900 7 42,250

Property, plart, and equipment

Intangible assets

Total impal-,:rent loss

Current accounts

On - call deposis

Fixed deposits accounts

Cash in hand

Others(specr/y)- M obile money

262,056

34
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Nyatltuna Level 4 Hospital (Kinmhu ()ountr (iovernment)

Annual Report and Financial Statemants Jitr '[he Year Ended 30tt' June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27 (a). Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

28. Receivables From Erchange Transactions

a) Current account
r 157590187 10,824Kenya Commercial bank

126)4'7 | 145 239,902Kenya Commercial bank

001 000053770 I1,330

262,056
Family bank

Sub- total

b) On - call deposits

Sutr- total

c) Fixed deposits account
I

Bank Name

Sub- total

d) Others(specrl!,)

cash in hand

Mobile money- Mpes4 Airtel
money

Sub- total
262,056Grand total

132,300Medical services receivables
t

264,'100

Rent receivables

Other exchange debtors

(-)C)Less: impairment allowaoce

Total rcccivables

3('
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Nyathunu Lt-.,t1 ,1 llospital (Kiambu Courrty Govenrment)
Annua! Report und Financiur Stalenents for The Year End.ed 3(t't' lune )023

Analysis of l{tcrivables From Exchange Transactions

Total (a+b) 264,,700

29. Receivables From Non-Exchange Trans rctions i

Anal sis of Receivables From Non-Exchan e Transactions

Current
FY

o/" of
the

total

Comparative
F}'

o/o of the
total

Less than I year 264,700 t00% r 32,300 10oo/o

Between l- 2 years o//o

Between 2-3 years 2022t2023 202u2022

Over 3 years /o o//o

100% 132.300 100.A

Transfers from the County Govemment

Undisbursed donor funds

Other debtc r ; (non-exchange transactions)

C)
Tota I

Less: impai. ncnt allowatrce (-)

Current
FY

Yo oI
the total

Comparative
FY

oh of the
total

Less than I year

Between l- 2 years /o

Between 2-3 years /o

Over 3 years

Total (a+b) Yo

Jt)

o//o

%

/o

t/O



Nyathunu Lovtl 4 Ilospital (Kiambu County Government)
ltrnual Rcport antl Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 30't' J unt 2023

30. I nven tories

430,658Pharmaceutical supplies

Maintenance supplies

Food supplies
597,$'tLincn and clothing supplies

Cleanin g materials supplies

C) C)Less: provision for impairment of stocks

t,028,295Total

37
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Nyathuna Level 4

Annual Reporl an

Hosp ital (Kiamb u Co unty

d Financial Slatements lor
Governmenl)
The Yeor Ended 3N lune 2023

Noles to lhe Financiol Staternenls (Conlinued)

31, Property, Plant and EquiPment

Cost

At 1s July 2021

IAdditions
(-)C)C) (-)C) G)Disposals

Transfers/adj ustments

At ls July 2022

Additions
C)C)G)G) G) 

---
C)DGfbsak

G)Transfer/adjustments

At 30rh June 2023

Deprcciation and impairment

At ln July 2021

Depreciation for the year

C)C)C) C)(-) C)Disposals
C)C) C)c) C) c)Impairrnent

At 30th June 2022

(-)

l8

At 30th Jun 2022

C)C)

(-)



Nyalhuna Level 4 HosP

Annuol Reporl and Fin
ital (Kiantbu CountY Government)

ancial Slatentenls The Year Ended 30th lune 2023

At 1d July 2022

Depreciation (,(-)G)G)G)C)salsDis
G)(-)G)C)G)G)lmpairment (-)G)

Transfer/adjustment

Net book values

At 30s Jun 2022

At 30e Jun 2023

39
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\j,othunt Letal 4 Hospital (Kiambu Courtty Govenutent)
,lnnttal Reporl and Financial Slatcntents for The Yesr Endcd 30't' .tune 2023

Notrs to thc Financial Statcments (Continued)

-12. I n ta ngiblc Assets-Softrvare

33. I nvestment Property

Cost

At bcginning of the year

Additions

A dd itions-lnternal development

o(-)Disposal

At e nd of the year

Amortization and impailment
Ar beginning of the year

Amortizalion for the p.ariod

lmpai"rncnt loss

A t en d of the year

l\* B \/

At beginning of the year

Additions

Disposals during the year (-) C)

Depreciation (where investment property is at cost) (-)

arrmentIm (-)
C)
(,

At end of the year
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N)'alhuna Leve
Annual Reporl

I 4 Hospital (Kianbu County Government)
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N otcs to the Financial Statements (Continued)

34. Trade and other Payables

3 5. Refundable Deposits from CustomerslPatients

985.607 866,301

377,508

Trade payables

Employee dues

Audit fee

Third-party payments

452,324

Doctors' fee
1,3 i8,6;5r,363,1 1sf'otal trade and other payables

o/" of
thc

Total
Compara
. tive FY

o/o oI
tbe
total

Currenl
FYA eln anal s ls:

100% 1,318,62s lO0Y"Under one year
o//oo/

1-2 ars
o//o

I ,363,1 I 5

o/
ars

o/
Over 3

100"h 1,319,625 lO0Yo1,363,1l5Total

Medical fees paid in advance

Credit facility deposit

Rent deposits

Others (specr.fi)

Total deposits

Comparative FY

o/o of
the

TotalCurrent FY

oh oI
the

TotalAgeing a srs:
%o/

Under one year
o//oo/

t-2 ears
o//o%

/o/o

/oTotal

.11

2-3 years

Over 3 years
/o



Nlmlhuna Level 4 Ilospitul (hiutnbu (loun1t Government)'
Annual Report and Finunciul Stute ments for The Year Ended 30tt' June 2023

Notes to the Financial State rrrt,n ts (Continued)

36. Provisions

37. Finance Lease Obligation

38. Deferred Income

Balance at the beginning of the 1,ear
Additional Provisions

(-) o C) (-)Provision utilised
ange due to discount & time value for moneyCh (-) o (-) ()

Total provisions

Current Provisions

Non -Current Prov is ions

Kshs

Long term lease obligation

Current Lease r'bligation
P.;hs

Total

Current Portion

Total

42

Total Provisions

Non-Current Portion



Nyathuna Level 4 Ilospirol (Kiambu Coungt Government)
Annual Report and Finantiul Statementsfor The Year Ended 30't' June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

38 (a) The deferred inconre movement is as follows:

39. Borrowings

39. (a1 Breakdown of Long- and Short-Term Borrorvings

Balance b/f
Additions during the ye ar

Transfers to Capial fuDd t, ( ) (-) (-)

C) o (-) (-)Transfers to statement of
financial performance

Other transfers (Spectfi) G) C) (-) (-)

Balance C/F

Balance at beginning of the period

Extemal borrowiugs during tbe year

Domestic borrowings during the year

Repayments of external borrowings during the year o o
Repayments of domestic bonowings during the
year

r.) o
Balance at end of the period

Current Obligation I

Non-Current Obligation I

Total

43



t\ys1ht,r,. Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu County Got.crnucnt)
..lnnual Report and Financial Slatements for The Year l:nled 30tt'June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statemcnts (Continucd)

40. Service Concession Arrangements

Servic t: concession liability at end of the year

41. Social ilenefit Liabilities

(,

Fair value ofservice concession assets recognized under PPE

Accumulated de iation to date C)

Service concession liability at beginning of the year

ln amountNet

Service concession revenue recognized (,

Health social benefit scheme

Unemployment social benefit scheme

Crphaned and wlnerable benefit scheme

People Living with Disabilities benefii
Scheme

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary social benefits

Total

Cunent social benefits

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

44



Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital (Kiambu Cottnty Govcrtrmenr)
Anuual Report and Financial Statenrenls for The l'eur l:nded 30't' Iune 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Cash Generated from Operations

Sumlus for the year before tax
Adiusted for:
Depreci;rtion I

(, ()Non-cash grants received

lmpairment
(-) ()al of assetsGains and losses oo dis

Contribution to provisions

Contribution to impairment allowance

Working Capital adjustments

o C)Inur ease in inventory

o o
Increase in deferred income
Increase i-u receivables

lncrease in payables

ts received in advance

Net cash flow from operatin activities
lncrease in

45
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Nlmlhutto Lcvl 4 llospital (Kiambu County Govenntent)
Annual Report and l:inunt'iul State terrts for The Year Ended 3|tt'June 2023

43. Fin ancia I Il,isk iVlanagement

The entity's activities exposc it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquiditl, nsks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks
to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. Thc cornpany does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to cnsure rhat
credit is only exrcnded ro customers with an established credit history.
The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

G) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to cretirt risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full u'hcn due. c^':dit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposis
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial invesrments.
Management assess:s the credit quatity of each customer. taking into account i s financial
position, past experience aird other factors. Individuat risk limits are set based on intemal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presenred in
the statement of financiai position are net of allowances lor doubtfrrl receivables, estirnated by
iire company's management based on prior experience and rheir assessment of the current
economic environment. The carrying amount of financill iisets recorded in the financial
statements representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without takilg account
of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

At 30 June 2022

Receivables from exchange transactlons

Receivables from -non-exchange
hansactioiis

Bank balances

Total

Receivables from exchange transaclons
Receivables from -non-exchange
Eansactions

Bank balances

46

Notes to the Fin.rrrriul Sratcmcnts (Continued) 
:

At 30 June 2023

Total



N yat h u n a L et' e I 4 I I o s p i tat ( Kiam b ui C o u nty G ov er tr tn errt)

Annual Rcport ond Financial Statements lor The Year Ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the F inancial Statements (Continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debt^s as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollecriblc amounts that the compiny has recognised in the financial statements is considered

adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The cntity has significant

concentration of credit risk on amounts due from patients. The board of management sets the

company's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the various

aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquiditl risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidiry risk management rests with the hospital's board of
rnanagemenl who have built an appropriate liquidity risk r:ranagement framework for the

managemenl of the entity's shor! medium and long{erm fuoding and liquidity management

requirements. The entiry manages liquidity risk through conthuous monitoring of forecasts and

actual cash flou's.

Tne table below represents cash flows payable by the company 'rnder non-derivative fmancial

liabiLities by tbeir remaining contraclual maturities at the reportirrg date. The amounls disclosed

in the table are t)e contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due withil l2 months equal

thei-r carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2022

Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Deferred income

Employee benefit obligation

Total
At 30 June 2023

Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Deferred income

Employee benefi t obligation

Total

47

Provisions
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Annual Report and Financial Stateurents Jitr 'l ht I ur Dnded 3|th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continucrl)

(iii) Market risk

The company's Finance Department is responsible :'rr the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implemenr::lior, rf those policies. There has been no change

to the entity's exposure to market risks or the way it rnanages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transar,i,onal currency exposurcs. Such exposure arises through pu.r,hases of
goods and services liat are done in currencies other than the local crurency. Invoices

denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of paymen'. is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying
amount.of the entity's foreign crurency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk from firture commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with
expected payments.

At 30 June 2022

Financial assets (investrnents, cash, debtors)

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Net foreign currency assetl (liabi I ity)

48

The hospital has put in place an intemal audit frinction to assist it in assessing the risk laced by

the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and tcst rJrc design and effectiveness of its internal

accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market

prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the

entity's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market

risk management is to manage and control marke t risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility lor managing market risk rests with the

Audit and fusk Management Comm.ittee.
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At 30 Junc 2023

Financial assets (investments, cash, debtors)

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

liabilias

Borrowin

Net forei

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Fore ign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonsbates the effect on the company's statement of financial
performance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

of the three main traDs"ction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would also occur if the (enya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held consti"ot.

b) Interest rate risk i

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

result of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank

deposits. This exposes the company to casb flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk
exposure arises mainly from interest rale movements on the company's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, managemeDt has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest rates.

10%
2022
Euro

l0,AUSD
2023

l00AEuro
t0%USD
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Nyalhuna l-evel 4 Ilospital (Kianbu Coutrit Govenurent)
Atrnual Rtport and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3|tt' Juna 202.1

Sensitivitl' an r l1'sis

The entit.v analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitiviry
analysis. Th is involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defincd rate shifts. The
scnsitivity analysis for interest rate risk assrures that alI other variables. in particular foreign
exchange ratcs. rcmain constant. The analysis has been performed oD the same basis as the
prior year.

Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statement
of hnancial pct,'ormance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease hy one percentage
point as a decri ase/increase of KShs 0 (2022: KShs 0). A rate increase/decreir q e ol 5% would
result in a decrease/increase in surplus of KSbs 0 (2023 - KShs 0).

iv) Cepital Risk Management
The objective of the entity's capital risk management is tc safeguard the Hospital's abiliry

to continue as a going concern. The entity capital struchrre comprises of the following

funds:

Revaluation reserve

Retained earnings

Capital reserve

Total funds

Total borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances C) o
Net debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents)

Gearing o//o o,/-/o

50
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Atrnual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30't' June 2023

Notes to thc Financial Statements (Continued)

44. Related Party Balances

Nature of related party relationships

Entities aod other parties related to the entity include those parties who have the ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include management personnel, their associates, and close farnily members.

Kiambu Counry Covemment is the principal shareholder of the hospital, holding 100% of the hospital's

equity interest. The National Govemrnent ofKenya bas provided full guarantees tc all long-term lenders

of the entity, both domestic and extemal. The related parties include:

i) The National Government;

ii) The County Covemment;.
.r,

iii) Board of Directors; .

ir) Key Management I

Transactions with related parties

a) Services olTered to related parties

Services to related parties

Sales of services to related parties

Total

b) Grants from the Government

Grants from County Government

Grants from the NationaI Covernment Entities

Donations in kind

Total

c) Expenses incurred on behalfofielated party

Payments of salaries and wages for xxx emplbyees

Payments for goods and services for xxx

Total

5i
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45. Scgment lnformation i ,

Thehospitaldoesn'toperateindifferentgeographicalregionsorindepartrnents'hence
no allocation of resources to different segments

46. ContingentLiabilities

17 . CaPital Commitmcnts

Total

48. Events after thc Reporting Period

'l'hcre wcrc no ntatcrial atl.iusting attd notr

49. Ultimate and Holding EntitY

adjusting cvcnts after thc rcporting period

The entity is a Semi- Autonomous Governmcnt Agency under thc Dcpartment of Health' lts

ultimate parent is the County Covcmmcnt ol Kiambu'

50. CurrencY

The financial statements are presentcd in Kenya Shiltings (Kshs) and all values are rounded off

to the nearest shilling.

tl) Key management compensation

Directors' emoluments

Compcnsation to the me dical Sup

Compensation to keY managemcnt

'l'otal

KshsKshs

Authorised For

Authorised And Contracted For

52
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court casc against the hospital
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6. Appendices

Appendix l: Progress on Follow Up of Auditor Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management

comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve

the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect

the issues to be resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same ref'erence numbers as contained in the extemal audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above,

from the final external audit report that is signed by Management.

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your entity responsible the for implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this

report to National Treasury.

Accou nting lccr

Timeframe

llcfcrence

No. on the

cxternal

audit

Ilcport

Issue /

Observations

from Auditor

Management

comnlcnts

Status:

(Resolved /
Not

Resolved)

(Put o tlute

when 1,6v

erpect the

iss ue lo be

rcsolved)
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Appendir II: Projects Implemented by The Entity

Proj ects

Projects implemented by the Hospital nunaea Uy development parhers

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status of proiect completion at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs inc-ttrred, srage which the project is etc)

a

I

1

3

\ I

I

2

54
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Appendix III: Inter-Entify Confirmation Letter

ffiP CoI.]NTY GOVERNMENT OF KIAMBU, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Nyathuna Level 4 Hospital, P.O BOX 160 Ngecha

onfirmation of amounts received N athuna Level 4 Hos ital as at 30(h June 2

Amounts Disbursed by FIF Fund (KShs) as at 30th June 2023

Differences

(KShs)

(F):(D-E)

Amount Received

by [beneficiary

entityl

(KShs) as at 30'h

June 2023(E)

Total

(D):(A+B+C

)

Inter-

Ministerial

(c)

Development (B)Recurrent

(A)

Date

Disbursed

Reference

Number

0.00211.572.00211.572.002t 1.572.002t8t2022

0.00212,787.00212.787.002t2.787.002511012022

0.00376.500.00376.500.00-r76,500.0015fi112022

0.0046s.028.00465.028.00465.028.000610u2023

0.00363.385.000363,385.000i63.385.001710312023

0.00200.000.00200.000.00200.000.0024t}s12023

0.001,829.272.001,829.272.00Total

o","..H.1.91 l.n.+*I[hv.. sien
gls-

Namc skD\D ktt \ie\rn&"|

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

Head of Accounts Department of the beneficiary entity:

55
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Appendix [V Reporting of Climate ilelevant Expenditures

Q4

56

\. ,
a

ffiolt
I

ffi
orl

ffi
Q3

t:iiirfdii;iliii
ilir,i,l'4tr}ili,rr



tttt

Nyuthunu Level 4 Ilospitut (Kiunfiu Cott"ty Govcrn"unl)
r 'l'ha Year En ed 30't' Juw 202JAnnuul iiepttrl untl Finunciul Stuten::irs fo

r\ppenttix \': Disasre r Ex pend it u re lte portiug Tcnrplatc

57

;+* i?iiir; r!;1nii'ii:l'19.:'.j',;.r-,t, ;'' j'. :.':l ,rn1. l'.,l. i]]]]=j-j:---j-


